
Procurement Board  
 

Dear Member, 
 

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Procurement Board to be held as follows 
for the transaction of the business indicated. 
Tom Stannard 

Chief Executive  

 
DATE: Wednesday, 2 March 2022 

 
TIME:  10.00 am 

 
VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 

this meeting.  
 

AGENDA 

 
1   Apologies for absence  

 

 

2   Declarations of interest  

 

 

3   To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held 
on 16th February 2022.  

 

(Pages 1 - 4) 

4   Matters arising  

 

 

5   Decision items - Part 1 (open to the public)  

 

 

5a Request for Approval - Exception to Contractual Standing Orders - 
Contract Award - Allied Health Professionals Therapy for Children and 
Young People - Karen Smith  

 

(Pages 5 - 14) 

5b Request for Approval - Exception to Contractual Standing Orders - 

Contract Award - Delivery of Children's Centre Services at the 
Hershel Weiss Centre - Steve Titley  
 

(Pages 15 - 24) 

5c Request for Approval - Contract Award - MCF Trinity Way/Springfield 
Lane Junction Improvement Scheme - Anene Chiegboka - Revised 

report attached.  
 

(Pages 25 - 34) 

5d Request for Approval to Go Out to Tender - Public Sector 

Decarbonisation Scheme - Additional Battery Schemes - Hayley 
Nixon  

 

(Pages 35 - 40) 

6   Any other business - Part 1 (open to the public)  

 

 

Public Document Pack



 

7   Date and time of next meeting  
 

10:00am on Wednesday 23rd March 2022 in the Salford Suite, Civic 
Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton, M27 5DA. 
 

 

 
Contact:   

Democratic Services E-Mail: decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk 



Procurement Board meeting held in the Civic Centre, Chorley Road, 

Swinton, M27 5DA 

16th February 2022 

Meeting commenced at 10:00am 

Meeting ended at 10.40am 

Present in Person 
Councillors Hinds (in the chair), Kelly, Merry and Youd. 

Attendance in Person 

Harriet Harper  Project Manager 

Chris Hesketh  Head of Financial Management 

Anthony Hilton  Head of Strategic Procurement 

Gillian Holt  Principal Officer - Development 

Paul Jackson  Head of Highways Construction Services 

Konrad Magdzinski Principal Officer – Development 

Karen Smith   Senior Commissioning Manager 

Les Woolhouse  Head of Service, Building & Facilities  

Liz Wright  Democratic Services 

 

1. Apologies for Absence 

Apologies were submitted on behalf of City Mayor Paul Dennett. 

2. Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest. 

3. Minutes of Proceedings 

The minutes of the meeting held on 26th January 2022 were approved as a correct record. 

4. Matters Arising 

Members of the board would be updated separately about Crossfield Construction Limited in  

response to their request at the last meeting. 

5. Decision Items – Part 1 – Open to the Public 

5(a) Request for Approval to Go Out to Tender – Installation of Hydropower Scheme at 

Charlestown Weir on the River Irwell  

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking approval to go out to 

competition for a contractor to install the hydropower scheme at Charlestown Weir on the River 

Irwell as part of the Unlocking Clean Energy in Greater Manchester project (part funded by European 
Regional Development Fund). 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Salford City Council was seeking to install the hydropower scheme at Charlestown Weir on the River 

Irwell in order to increase local renewable energy generation and increase the flexibility of local 

energy supply as part of its contribution towards Greater Manchester’s target of becoming a carbon-

neutral city region by 2038. The purpose of ERDF funding was as the funding of last resort to bring 

forward schemes that would otherwise not be deliverable, in this case due to cost and/or payback 

taking too long to repay the Invest to Save funds. ERDF had been awarded to these installations to 

address this gap in funding for the proposed investments and ensure the City Council was able to 

deliver the installations. The project “Unlocking Clean Energy in Greater Manchester (UCEGM)” was 

led by the Energy Systems Catapult, with the consortium also including Stockport, Wigan, Rochdale 

and Manchester Councils. The three Salford City Council sites (Charlestown hydro, Little Page 5 

Agenda Item 5a Hulton solar farm and solar car ports at Turnpike and Swinton Hall Road) were 

expected to produce about 2.5MW of electricity annually. 

Members asked the social value of the project and it was confirmed that the tender process included 

the social value criteria and highlighted the use of local/ Greater Manchester contractors.  If 

required the work for the project could be split into the technical work and the supporting general 

building work to help create opportunities for local involvement where the technical expertise would 

probably not be available, as it was very specialised, and that this could be added to the tender. 

RESOLVED, THAT: approval be granted to go out to competition though an open tender process for a 

contractor to install the hydropower scheme at Charlestown Weir on the River Irwell as part of the 

Unlocking Clean Energy in Greater Manchester project. 

 

5(b) Request for Approval – Contract Award – Rough Sleepers Accommodation 

Programme - Conversion of a Former Family Centre on Wingate Road into Four 1 

Bedroom Apartments 

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking approval to award the 

contract for the conversion of a former family centre on Wingate Road, Little Hulton, into four 1 
bedroom apartments.  

Homelessness had been increasing in the city since 2012 and the council was currently housing 314 

people who had slept rough or been at significant risk of rough sleeping. There w as an acute need 

for move on accommodation, particularly for those who had complex needs. In response, the council 

submitted four bids to the Rough Sleepers Accommodation Programme (RSAP), for the delivery of 

new move on accommodation in the city. All four bids were successful and attracted grant of 

£1,591,500 with a requirement of match funding of £1,100,000 from the council’s capital 

programme. A high-level estimate of £183,500 for the Wingate scheme was included within the bid. 

Planning permission for the scheme was granted on 28th January 2022. The tenancies would be 

allocated and managed by the council’s Supported Tenancy service. Revenue funding had also been 

obtained through RSAP to deliver the ongoing support. 

It was reported that there was one bid received and this was likely to be because of the timing of the 

tender (over the Christmas period), the short turn round required and that the demand for 
construction work was very high and the contract was a relatively small contract.  

It was confirmed that consultants were used to develop the specification for the scheme due to the 

timing of the work and the lack of capacity in-house and that those appointed (Capitia) had been 

Page 2



procured via a tender process.  Members requested to see the  cost of the consultants for this 
project and it was agreed this would be provided outside of the meeting. 

It was confirmed that the social value monitoring would be monitored by officers against the 

contract and via the portal. 

RESOLVED, THAT: the contract for the conversion of a former family centre on Wingate Road, Little 

Hulton into four 1 bedroom apartments be awarded to Schofield and Sons Ltd., with a contract value 

of £190,037.11. 

 

5(c) – Request to Go Out to Tender – Street Lighting Routine Cyclic Maintenance 

Contract 

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking approval to go out to 

open competition to appoint a Street Lighting cyclic maintenance service provider to deliver 

essential reactive and planned street lighting maintenance works for the Technical Highways 

Services team. Since the transition from the Urban Vision partnerships agreement, there was now a 

need to have in place a legally compliant and properly procured contractual agreement with a third-
party contractor to deliver these services.  

It was intended to appoint a single contractor to deliver this service, this included the inspection, 

reporting, cleaning and routine maintenance of the street lighting network that consisted of 

approximately 30,000 street lighting columns, which the city council was responsible for. This service 

would run in tandem with the in-house Street Lighting team based at Swinton Hall Road depot, who 
delivered the vast majority of any emergency or reactive repair and maintenance.  

Members asked about developing the capacity for the electrical maintenance to be carried out in -

hose and it was confirmed it was intended to increase capacity via the  apprenticeship route and 

that a hybrid approach (between the contractor and the in-house provision would be possible in the 
2nd and 3rd  year of the contract and the provision to do this was included in the contract. 

RESOLVED, THAT: approval be granted to go out to competition for the Street Lighting Cyclic 

Maintenance Contract in accordance with the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules though an open 

tender process. 

6 - Any other business – Part 1 (open to the public) 
There were no items of any other business. 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

Part 1: Open to the public 

 
 

REPORT OF 

 
The Strategic Director for People Services 

 

TO 
 

Procurement Board 
 

ON 

 
2nd March 2022  

 

TITLE:  Approval for an Exception to Contractual Standing Orders to award a contract 
for Allied Health Professionals Therapy for children and young people to Northern 

Care Alliance NHS Foundation Trust.

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

That the Procurement Board approves an exception to Contractual Standing Orders 
as permitted within the City Council Constitution for the reason highlighted in the table 

below and the award of the Contract for Allied Health Professionals Therapy for 
children and young people as detailed in the table below: 

Detail required Answers 
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project 
Provision of Allied Health Professionals therapy for 
children and young people with special educational 

needs and disability (SEND) 

Name of Successful Contractor  Northern Care Alliance NHS Foundation Trust 
formerly known as Salford Royal NHS Foundation 

Trust 

Supplier Registration Number 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 
 

Type of organisation 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 
Other 

Status of Organisation 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) Choose an item. 

Contract Value (£) £461,337  

Contract Duration  12 months 

Contract Start Date  01/04/2022 

Contract End Date  31/03/2023 

Optional Extension Period 1 N/A 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5a



2 
 

Detail required Answers 
Optional Extension Period 2 N/A 

Who will approve each Extension 
Period? Choose an item. 

Contact Officer (Name & number) Karen Smith, Senior Commissioning Manager, phone 
via Microsoft Teams 

Lead Service Group People Services 

Reason for CSO Exception: The goods / 
services / works are only obtainable 
from one provider and there is no other 
provider available to allow genuine 
competition 

Tick if it applies  

Reason for CSO Exception: The 
execution of works or the supply of 
goods or services is controlled by a 
statutory body 

Tick if it applies  

Reason for CSO Exception: Delivers 
Best Value to the Council 

Tick if it applies  

Reason for CSO Exception: Special 
education, health or social care 
contracts, if it is considered in the 
Council’s best interests and to meet the 
Council’s obligations under relevant 
legislation 

Tick if it applies x  

Reason for CSO Exception: The 
execution of works or the supply of 
goods and services is required so 
urgently as not to permit compliance 
with the requirements of competition 

Tick if it applies  

Reason for CSO Exception: Security 
works where the publication of 
documents or details in the tendering 
process could prejudice the security of 
SCC and Salford residents 

Tick if it applies  

Reason for CSO Exception: 
Procurements made through, or on 
behalf of, any consortium, local 
authority, statutory or similar body, 
provided that tenders or quotations are 
invited and contracts placed in 
accordance with national or EU 
legislation. 

Tick if it applies  

Funding Source Revenue Budget 

Ethical Contractor (EC): Mayor’s 
Employment Charter 

 

 

EC: Committed to sign up to the Charter x 

EC: Accredited Living Wage Employer  

 

Page 6



3 
 

 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

The purpose of this report is to request an exception to Contractual Standing Orders 

to approve the award of a contract for Allied Health Professionals Therapy for children 
and young people with special education needs and disability (SEND) to Northern 
Care Alliance NHS Foundation Trust.

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 

0-25 Transformation Programme Plan on a Page 

SEND strategy 

Procurement Board Report 1st July 2020 

‘Special educational needs and disability code of practice: 0 to 25 years’, Statutory 
guidance for organisations which work with and support children and young people 

who have special educational needs or disabilities. Department for Education, 
Department of Health 2015 

 

KEY DECISION:  

Yes – The total value of the contract is £461,447 for 12 months. The contract will 

provide the delivery of speech and language therapy, occupational and paediatric 
therapy and audiology services for children and young people with special educational 
needs and disability (SEND) across Salford. 

 

DETAILS:   

Salford has the highest incidence of children and young people with SEND in Greater 
Manchester and over 7,000 Salford children and young people receive support with 
their SEND. Salford City Council (SCC) has longstanding contracts with Salford Royal 

NHS Foundation Trust, now part of the Northern Care Alliance NHS Foundation Trust 
(NCA) for the provision of Occupational Therapy/Physiotherapy (OT/PT) and 

audiology and a separate contract for the provision of speech and language (SaLT) 
for children with SEND. These are referred to as allied health professional therapy 
services. The current contract extension ends on 31 March 2022 and an urgent 

decision is required for the arrangements beyond this date.  
 

In 2020, Procurement Board agreed an extension to SCC existing arrangements for 
the provision of Allied Health Professionals Therapy by Salford Royal NHS Foundation 
Trust (now known NCA) until 31 March 2022.  The period of extension approved was 

to provide time to support the full implementation of the integrated service specification 
of the provision of SaLT and the aligned outcomes framework and to enable continuity 

Page 7



4 
 

of provision during the challenges of COVID 19. The extension also recognised the 
intense pressure which clinical services were placed under due to the Pandemic. The 

additional time also enabled a full evaluation of the OT/PT service and the 
development of a new service specification and outcomes framework. These 

arrangements for improved outcome framework monitoring will over time provide 
evidence on the impact of these services on children and young people and their 
families and the wider system and inform future commissioning intentions.  

 
 

The extension period was also granted to explore the possibility of SCC integrating its 
contracts with Salford Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) for the provision of these 
services. The ambition being to integrate these commissioning arrangements with the 

CCG as the lead commissioner due to their larger investment in the services. Due to 
the forthcoming changes announced in the Health and Social Care Bill (2021), CCGs 

will no longer exist after July 2022, and they will be replaced by the Greater 
Manchester Integrating Commissioning Board (ICB). Considering the uncertainty 
about these changes it is proposed that any joint contractual arrangements are 

delayed until the legislation is in place and changes have been embedded. This will 
provide some assurance and control for SCC during a period of uncertainty whilst 

these changes are confirmed and implemented. However, the operational 
commissioning arrangements will remain joint so that CCG/ICB and SCC colleagues 
will continue to work to jointly manage the performance of the contract in the context 

of collaborative commissioning approaches. 
 
 
Progress and challenges made since the Procurement Board July 2020 where 
the current extension was granted: 

 
1. Implementation of the service specification and outcomes framework for SaLT, 

which is based on the requirements of both commissioners, i.e., SCC and Salford 
CCG. Implementation of the service specification has progressed well, however, 
performance reporting has been hampered by the pressures of COVID-19 and the 

national directive to NHS organisations to focus on service delivery and to be 
relieved of reporting deadlines. This has led to some performance information (see 

below) being received at the monthly Expert Reference Group chaired by the 
chaired by Salford CCG’s Head of Service Improvement and is attended by senior 
professionals from the CCG, SCC and SRFT. In addition, staff vacancies and 

sickness have impacted on service delivery. In January 2022, NCA commenced 
recruitment for ten positions within the service. It is noted that Greater Manchester 

Health and Social Care Partnership and Greater Manchester Combined Authority 
have put SaLT recruitment on the risk register. GM Commissioners met to review 
several aspects of the provision across GM, and it was agreed that there would 

be a strategic push to encourage professionals at Health Education England to 
recognize the shortages in SaLT and OT staffing provision 

 
2. A review of the OT/PT service has been completed and a new specification and 

outcome framework is pending approval subject to proposals to meet service 

improvements being developed and approved. 
 

Page 8



5 
 

3. Audiology: the service has been revising their activity to align with the SCC 
Learning Support Service, and by working in partnership make better use of 

resources and expertise to improve outcomes for children and their families.  
 

However, the current services have been impacted by COVID-19 and this continues 
to be the case with the new Omicron variant and the pressures on the NHS. Although 
the intention is to move to fully integrated commissioning for allied health professions 

therapy, until the changes in the Health and Social Care Bill are implemented, 
operationally commissioners will work together to jointly manage the performance of 

the contract over the next year which will inform future commissioning decisions.  
 
  

2020/2021 Performance information for the SaLT provision across the key 
stages.   

As of November 2021, a monthly average of 170 referrals per month were received. 
Waiting time continues to be around 16 weeks for initial assessment. Three 
additional Saturday clinics have been put in place to help reduce the waiting times. 

 

 
 
Senior staff from the Salford SaLT service has received national recognition. The 
Salford CCG Designated Clinical Officer for SEND received a Fellowship from the 

Royal College of Speech and Language Therapists. The operational lead received a 
‘Giving Voice Award’ for my “Twitter Takeover” in 2020 around the role of SLTs 

within a virtual school. 
 

 

 
2020/2021 Performance information for the OT/PT provision.   

 The core service is reverting to full clinic capacity with a mix of virtual and face 

to face appointments. The proportion currently sits at 27% virtual and 73% face 

to face.  

 There are plans to restart hydrotherapy. Due to infection control requirements 

this will be a reduced offer of 3 appointments as opposed to 10 pre covid. It is 

Page 9



6 
 

hoped that this can be increased to 4/5 sessions once there is evidence that 

families can pass each other within infection control guidelines.  

 

Reason for exception to Contractual Standing Orders 

 ‘Special education, health or social care contracts, if it is considered in the Council’s 
best interest and to meet the Council’s obligations under relevant legislation’. 
 

This contract is to support children and young people with SEND. The SEND code of 
practice provides statutory guidance for organisations which work with and support 
children and young people who have SEND. It stresses that, when carrying out their 

statutory duties under the Children and Families Act 2014, local authorities must do 
so with a view to making sure that services work together where this promotes children 

and young people’s wellbeing or improves the quality of special educational provision 
(Section 25 of the Children and Families Act 2014). Local authorities and health bodies 
must have arrangements in place to plan and commission education, health, and 

social care services jointly for children and young people with SEN or disabilities. Over 
the past 18 months, joint commissioning by SCC and the CCG has resulted in an 

integrated specification and outcomes framework for SaLT and similar in draft for 
OT/PT. This working together reflects the requirements in the SEND code of practice 
and in turn will lead to consistent standards of delivery for children and families in 

Salford. 
 

Alongside these contracts, Salford CCG also holds contracts for these services with 
both commissioners responsible for different aspects of these services for children 
with SEND. The investment by Salford CCG for these services is £2,169,103 for 21-

22.  
 

The total contract price for 2021-2022 is as follows for SCC: 
 

Service Cost (£) 

Occupational Therapy/Paediatric 

Therapy 

63,790 

Speech and Language 379,080 

Audiology 10.532 
TOTAL 453,402 

 
 

Funding for this contract is provided from a combination of core revenue budget (£75k) 
and DSG (£266k), with the balance being a budget pressure on the overall Children’s 
Integrated Fund. In light of the fact that SCC has not paid an uplift for several years 

but staffing costs within the NHS have continued to rise, budget holders are supportive 
of 1.75% inflationary uplift being applied to the costs for 2022-2023. This is the NHS 

standard inflationary uplift applied to all NHS services. This uplift of £7,935 will bring 
the contract value for 2022-2023 to £461,337. 
 

 
Children’s commissioners from SCC and the CCG have worked with NCA to review 

these services to ensure the maximum benefit and integration for Salford children and 

Page 10



7 
 

families with the ambition to integrate these commissioning arrangements with the 
lead commissioner being the CCG due to their larger investment in the services.  
 
 

 
Proposal 
 

There are three elements to this proposal 

1. To extend the current arrangements for twelve months from 1st April 2022 - 31 

March 2023 as a contract between SCC and NCA. 
2. To increase the funding for 2022-2023 by 1.75% inflationary uplift (NHS 

standard inflationary uplift). The contract value will therefore be £461,337. 

3. To request closer monitoring of the outcomes delivered by these services by 
the commissioners to determine the longer-term commissioning arrangements 

with the GM Integrated Commissioning Board during 2022-23. 
 

This exception is being sought on the basis of service continuity during the Pandemic, 

alignment with contracts in the pooled budget arrangements and acknowledgement of 
the Health and Social Care Act which will see the dissolution of CCGs and the 

establishment of the Integrated Care Board and Provider collaboratives. 
 
Should the Council deem it necessary to go out to competition this could destabilise 

current NHS provision, place unnecessary burden on already stretched NHS 
resources and affect outcomes for children and families.  

 
The supplier is a well-established integrated provision within the NHS.  
 

The development of the ICB will enable the Council to engage and improve provision 
as part of the Provider Collaborative. 

 
Social Value 

Both the provider and Salford CCG have made pledges to the Social Value for Salford 

Alliance including commitments to greener travel and opportunities for more local 
people from vulnerable groups accessing new jobs, apprenticeships, training and work 

experience placements. 

NCA have reported that, COVID has meant monumental shifts in how it works, and 
serves communities, with a home first policy driven from the top down. This has seen 
a huge shift in travel around sites, and people seeing what has traditionally been 

seen as a car parking issue, for what it really is, a working practices, space and 
travel issue.  NCA has seen a significant improvement in clean air around its sites, 

and with 47% of staff working from home full at the height of the pandemic, with 80% 
finding they maintained a healthy work life balance. 
 

Over the next year, commissioners will work with the provider to identify opportunities 

for developing these commitments further as well as taking in to account the Greater 
Manchester Social Value Framework (2020). 

Page 11



8 
 

Any new procurement for this service will specifically include social value requirements 
with linked Key Performance Indicators.   

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  

0-25 Transformation Programme 

SEND Strategy

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: -   

None undertaken for this report.

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:   

If these services do not continue beyond 1st April 2022, there is a risk that vulnerable 

children, including those at Resourced Schools, and those known to the Youth 
Offending Service, may not achieve their best education outcomes.  

If this funding and extension is not provided there is a risk that the overall allied health 
therapy provision will be destabilised if SCC withdraws its funding. 

SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

Children’s Services Revenue Budget

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by the Shared Legal Service 

When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or the 
execution of works, the Council must comply with the Public Contracts Regulations 

2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), failing which a contract 
may be subject to legal challenge from an aggrieved provider.  

 
Whilst exceptions to CSO’s may be authorised by a decision notice from Procurement 
Board for the value of this award, as detailed in section 3 of Part 5 of the Constitution 

there is still a risk of challenge from aggrieved providers if the usual tender process 
has not been followed. The risk of challenge increases in tandem with the value and 

proposed length of the extension. In this instance, as noted in the report, the value of 
the proposed award is relatively low and for a short period. 
 

Following the Cabinet Office guidelines and in accordance with Regulation 72 of PCR, 
contracts may be modified without a new procurement procedure, particularly in 

responding to COVID-19, the Council may enter into contracts without competing or 
advertising the requirement so long as they are able to demonstrate that there is 
genuine reason for urgency with the new arrangement and the events were 

unforeseeable.  
 

Page 12



9 
 

The following conditions apply:  
  

(i) the need for modification has been brought about by circumstances which a diligent 
contracting authority could not have foreseen;   

(ii) the modification does not alter the overall nature of the contract; and 
(iii) any increase in price does not exceed 50% of the value of the original contract or 
framework agreement  

 
This justification demonstrates that the decision to extend this particular contract was 

compounded by and related to the COVID-19 pandemic and having considered the 
circumstances and concluded that the recommendation to extend the services as 
described is considered to be of least risk and of most benefit to the Council. 

 
Also, PCR permits direct awards of contracts to be made in limited circumstances, set 

out at regulation 32 of the PCR (“Negotiated procedure without prior publication”) such 
that reg 32 (2)(b)(ii) and (c) confirms use of the procedure: 

“…where the works, supplies or services can be supplied only by a particular 

economic operator for any of the following reasons: 

 (ii)  competition is absent for technical reasons, 

 but only….where no reasonable alternative or substitute exists and the absence of 

competition is not the result of an artificial narrowing down of the parameters of the 

procurement; or 

(c) where, for reasons of extreme urgency brought about by events unforeseeable by 

the contracting authority” the usual procurement time limits cannot be complied with. 

Further reasons for approving the extensions are set out in the body of the report, 

and the risk of any challenge to the extension proposed could be described as 
extremely low.

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by Chris Mee – Strategic Finance Manager 
(Ext 0434) 

Funding for this contract is provided from a combination of core revenue budget 
(£75k) and DSG (£266k), with the balance being a budget pressure on the overall 
Children’s Integrated Fund.  

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Christine Flisk, Corporate 

Procurement Team 

The report outlines a proposal to issue a one-year contract (1st April 2022 to 31st March 
2023) to the existing provider for this service. There is currently no provision in existing 

contract to extend so the recommendation is to award an exception to Contractual 
Standing Orders.  
 

Page 13



10 
 

There is always a risk that any award of business, if made outside of the full 
competitive processes could be subject to challenge by an aggrieved supplier on the 

basis that it ought to have been advertised and put out to competition. This risk cannot 
be eliminated. However, any challenge would be defended on the basis that this is a 

delay, not avoidance of the Regulations. A procurement timetable will need to be 
determined as part of the collaborative development of a joint commissioning strategy 
with the ICB for delivery of these services. 

 

HR IMPLICATIONS:  

Not applicable as external provider staff 
 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS:  Supplied by: Karen Smith, Senior 
Commissioning Manager 

The provider, SRFT have previously made a pledge as part of the Social Value in 
Salford Alliance as well as Salford CCG who are the co commissioner with SCC for 
this service. This includes commitments towards greener travel for staff and service 

delivery. 
 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  

N/A 

 

CONTACT OFFICER:  Karen Smith, Senior Commissioning Manager 

TELEPHONE NUMBER: through Microsoft teams

 

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S):  

All

 
 
 

Page 14



1 
 

Part 1: Open to the public 

 
 

REPORT OF 

 
The Strategic Director for People 

 

TO 
 

Procurement Board 
 

ON 

 
2nd March 2022  

 
TITLE:  Approval for an Exception to Contractual Standing Orders to award a 
contract for the delivery of Children’s Centre services by Aguda North West at the 

Hershel Weiss Centre 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

That the Procurement Board approves an exception to Contractual Standing Orders 
as permitted within the City Council Constitution for the reason(s) highlighted in the 

table below and the award of the Contract for delivery of children’s centre services 
by Aguda North West at the Hershel Weiss Centre, as detailed in the table below: 

 

Detail required Answers 

Title/Description of Contracted 
Service/Supply/Project Children’s Centre Services 

Name of Successful Contractor  Aguda North West 

Supplier Registration Number 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) TBC 

Type of organisation 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 
Trading Arm of a Registered Charity 

Status of Organisation 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) Non-SME 

Contract Value (£) £ 732,165 full project  

Contract Duration  60 months 

Contract Start Date  01/04/2022 

Contract End Date  31/05/2027 

Optional Extension Period 1 12 months 

Optional Extension Period 2 12 months 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5b



2 
 

Detail required Answers 
Who will approve each Extension 

Period? Strategic Director (extension < £150k) 

Contact Officer (Name & number) Steve Titley 0161 793 2435  

Lead Service Group People Services 

Reason for CSO Exception: The goods / 
services / works are only obtainable 
from one provider and there is no other 
provider available to allow genuine 
competition 

Tick if it applies X 

Reason for CSO Exception: The 
execution of works or the supply of 
goods or services is controlled by a 
statutory body 

Tick if it applies  

Reason for CSO Exception: Delivers 
Best Value to the Council 

Tick if it applies X 

Reason for CSO Exception: Special 
education, health or social care 
contracts, if it is considered in the 
Council’s best interests and to meet the 
Council’s obligations under relevant 
legislation 

Tick if it applies  

Reason for CSO Exception: The 
execution of works or the supply of 
goods and services is required so 
urgently as not to permit compliance 
with the requirements of competition 

Tick if it applies  

Reason for CSO Exception: Security 
works where the publication of 
documents or details in the tendering 
process could prejudice the security of 
SCC and Salford residents 

Tick if it applies  

Reason for CSO Exception: 
Procurements made through, or on 
behalf of, any consortium, local 
authority, statutory or similar body, 
provided that tenders or quotations are 
invited and contracts placed in 
accordance with national or EU 
legislation. 

Tick if it applies  

Funding Source Revenue Budget 

Ethical Contractor (EC): Mayor’s 
Employment Charter 

 

 

EC: Committed to sign up to the Charter x 

EC: Accredited Living Wage Employer  

 
 
 

Page 16



3 
 

 
 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

 
The purpose of this report is to request an exception to Contractual Standing Orders 

to approve the award of a contract for the delivery of Children’s Centre services by 
Aguda North West at the Hershel Weiss Centre.  

 
The case for continuing the contract with the current provider is being made on the 
grounds of:- 

 

 the unique, interlinked nature of the Council’s Early Help provision and the 

Aguda North West provision and current long term contractual obligations 
between the Council that means that there is no other provider available to 
allow genuine competition at this point.  

 

 the value for money and added value that the contract with the current 

provider brings means that this contract delivers Best Value for the Council. 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  

Report of The Strategic Director for Children’s and Adults’ Services to Procurement 
Board On 30th November 2016- ‘Approval for an Exception to Contractual Standing 

Orders to award a contract for the delivery of Children’s Centre services by Aguda 
North West at the Hershel Weiss Centre’  

Building lease dated 25th July 2008 for 25 years between the Council of the City of 
Salford and Aguda North West. 
 

The land lease between the Council and Orthodox Jewish Community Trustees for 
the land on which the centre is situated for 40 years from 2008.  

 

KEY DECISION: Yes 

 

 
DETAILS:   

 
The purpose of this report is to establish the case for an exception. The exception is 
being sought in two areas. 

 
 

1. The goods / services / works are only obtainable from one provider and 

there is no other provider available to allow genuine competition 
 

Page 17



4 
 

The current contract provider, Aguda North West is a specialist supplier in the area 
of providing culturally appropriate Children’s Centre services for the Orthodox Jewish 

Community (OJC).   
 

The Council has Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS) statutory duties under the 
Childcare Act 2006 and Childrens Act 2016 to ensure that early childhood services 
are provided in an integrated manner in order to facilitate access, and maximise the 

benefits of, those services to young children and their parents. There is a duty to 
provide, so far as is reasonably practicable, arrangements for sufficient provision of 

children’s centres to meet local need.  
 
The current service provided by Aguda North West at the Hershel Weiss Centre 

ensures that the Council is complying with this duty and is doing so in a way which 
meets the needs of the OJC in the heart of that community where mainstream 

services can struggle to successfully engage. The demand for the service continues 
to be strong within the OJC in Salford and the community location of the Centre 
supporting delivery to this large and growing community.  

 
The Hershel Weiss Children and Family Centre is a responsive provision which has 

extensive links into the community and is best placed to assess any emerging needs 
and gaps in provision. These strong community links also benefit mainstream service 
providers, as the centre can facilitate access between the community and other 

support services in the Council and across Salford.  
 

Compatibility and integration with existing services 

Aguda North West delivery at the Hershel Weiss Centre began some years ago, 

when it was funded as a stand-alone project as part of the Sure Start Local 
Programme (SSLP).  In 2008 a formal appraisal process was carried out for the nine 
SSLP projects.  A decision was made to re-commission this project with a remit to 

become a satellite Children’s Centre in Broughton, in the heart of the OJC.  Since 
then, it has developed a range of integrated services which complement the current 

‘core offer’ for Children’s Centres. 
 

The project operates within a stand-alone building which was developed as part of 

the first round of Children’s Centre capital funding. The building is the property of the 
City Council (which was leased to Aguda North West from 2008 for 25 years, free of 

charge). The land on which the building stands was similarly leased to the Council by 
Orthodox Jewish Community Trustees for 40 years, from 2008, also free of charge.  
The capital funding is linked to a requirement to provide services for children and 

families over the 25-year claw back period for Sure Start capital. At present Salford 
City Council retains £10,000 of the £104,595 annual funding for the annual 

maintenance of the building, with the remaining £94,595 per year being awarded to 
Aguda North West to run services at the Centre.  
 

The interlinking of the service provided by Aguda North West at the Hershel Weiss 
Centre along with the mutual benefit of the longstanding leases on both land and 

building, (which gives the Council a site for delivery in the heart of the OJC 
community) means that there is a strong compatibility of interests and objectives 

Page 18



5 
 

between the Council’s Early Help provision and Aguda North West as an established 
community provider of specialist services to the OJC.    

 
In addition, the long-term nature of these leases, along with the original requirement 

that the capital funding is linked to a requirement to provide services for children and 

families over 25 years would make a cessation or change in this contract difficult. In 

fact legal advice is that the Council cannot offer the premises as part of a contract for 

the delivery of childcare services from the premises, to another provider unless the 

current tenants breach the terms of the lease.  

It has been a difficult time for all Children’s Centres during the height of the Covid 

period with closures during the period to minimise the chance of spreading infection 
but all centres are now re-opened, including the Hershel Weiss Centre. 

 
The Hershel Weiss Centre normally engages with, on average 380 children aged 0-5 

and their families per quarter at the Centre.  To meet the needs of these families during 

enforced Covid closure periods, the Centre continued to provide outreach services in 

other local venues/ telephone support in the community including baby clinics, advice 

and training sessions, advice on debt and finances, food parcels and financial help, 

book and toy libraries and support with activity packs for struggling families. The efforts 

to keep services going during Covid were recognised by the Hershel Weiss Centre 

being Nominated in Salford CVS’s ‘Heart Of Salford Awards’, in the Organisation of 

The Year Category in 2020. 

As restrictions reduced this Summer, funding raised by Aguda North West allowed for 

a Summer activity programme including art, music, physical activities and Summer 

day trips out for 500 families. The Hershel Weiss Centre is now open again delivering 

child and family activity and information sessions in line with Early Help strategies and 

targets.  

 

2. Delivers Best Value to the Council 

 

Aside from the rent-free access to a site in the heart of the OJC community (described 

above) this contract also provides other elements of added value. 

As a Third Sector provider separate from the Council Aguda North West can source 

additional funds from sources that the Council cannot always access. For example, 

Aguda North West are in the second year of a five year partnership delivery with Binoh 

of Manchester on the JIGSAW programme, funded by the National Lottery ‘Reaching 

Communities’ programme, which is delivering innovative health, education, citizenship 

and life skills support to the Jewish Community. 

 

 

Page 19



6 
 

Ongoing monitoring of delivery 

The Provider works to a current service specification in line with Early Help strategies 

and objectives which is monitored quarterly. A proposed change from 01.4.22 onwards 

will include the requirement that the Provider delivers on a refreshed specification in 

line with refreshed Early Help targets and strategies going forward. This process will 

include a review of monitoring and spend to ensure the focus of the available 

resources provides impact on priority outcomes. 

 

The specification will ensure that a core offer to be delivered at the Hershel Weiss 

Centre is agreed that is reasonable and proportionate for the funding available, as the 

service will continue to be delivered at the current rate of annual funding.  In order to 

support and complement delivery and to meet the needs of the community, families 

will be able to access any further support they need via referral into the Broughton 

Hub and other Council and Council-partner services 

 

Social Value 

With regard to Social Value, the current specification includes outcomes to address 

health inequalities for children and families in the relatively deprived Orthodox Jewish 

Community as well as outcomes around helping local families with employment and 

debt issues. These outcomes will be monitored against the specification. Aguda NW 

is also committed to sign up to the City Mayor’s Employment Charter. 

 
 
Conclusions 

 

 The complementary nature of delivery between the Hershel Weiss Centre and 

the Council’s other Children’s Centres along with the building and land lease 
arrangement, gives both the Council and Aguda North West the opportunity to 

deliver, in partnership, on Early Help strategies and objectives for 0-5 year old 
Jewish heritage children and their families in an accessible and culturally 
sensitive facility in the heart of Salford’s Jewish community.  

 

 The land and building lease arrangements currently make a change of 

provider unfeasible at this point and the free rental of the land for the Hershel 
Weiss Centre to operate from provides Best Value in terms of the Council 
ensuring that Early Help services are located at the heart of the OJC 

 

 The additional match funds that Aguda North West brings in to further meets 

the needs of the Jewish community provides added value and adds to the 
Best Value of this contract for the Council, with the new contract giving 
stability of provision for that community going forward. 

 

Page 20



7 
 

 However, the current specification for delivery will also be re-examined and 
refreshed to ensure that resources and activities will be still more closely 

focussed on key Early Help objectives and targets and delivery within the 
funding available. Delivery will continue to be monitored quarterly against 

targets throughout the new contract period. Towards the end of the contract 
period there will be a further review of options in consultation with the 
Corporate Procurement Team, with the final decision to be presented to 

Procurement Board for consideration. 
 

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  

A city where children and young people are valued; An Inclusive City; Early 

Intervention and Prevention Strategy; Better Off In Salford, A Strategy to end Family 
Poverty. 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:-  not applicable. 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:   There is a high risk of disruption to service users if this 
contract is not extended with the current provider. 

 

SOURCE OF FUNDING: Core funding.

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323 

 

The Council has a duty under the Childcare Act 2006 to secure that early childhood 
services are provided in an integrated manner in order to facilitate access and 
maximise the benefits of those services to young children and their parents. 

Arrangements made pursuant to that duty must, so far as is reasonably practicable, 
include arrangements for sufficient provision of children’s centres to meet local need.  

The service provided by Aguda North West at the Hershel Weiss Centre ensures that 
the Council is complying with this duty and doing so in a way which meets the needs 
of the Orthodox Jewish community. 

 
It is an established principle that an existing public contract is capable of being 

extended, and the Council’s Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s) also allow for 
contract extensions to be made where the original contract makes provision for such 
an extension of the original term. There is, however, always a risk that any extension 

not provided for, if done outside of the usual tender process, could be subject to 
challenge by an aggrieved provider, on the basis that it ought to have been put out to 

competition and advertised in accordance with the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 
(PCR) and CSO’s. 
 

Where there is no provision to extend within the original contract (or extension), for 
contracts of this value, approval must be made by Procurement Board. 

Page 21



8 
 

Notwithstanding Procurement Board approval for an exception, there is still a risk of 
challenge from aggrieved providers if the usual (formal) procurement process has not 

been followed and any extension has been awarded outside of that process, on the 
basis that it ought to have been put out to competition. 

  
The risk of any such challenge naturally increases in tandem with the scope of 
services, value of the contract and/or proposed length of any extension to a contract, 

and the number of potential providers of the service, which in this instance there do 
not appear to be any other providers of these services within the market, and the 

extension with the existing providers with proven ability to meet the requirements of 
the service users would be argued to be more cost effective and efficient under the 
circumstances.   

  
Whilst the proposed extensions may be challenged, it would appear highly unlikely in 

this instance, as it would seem for the reasons set out in the report therefore that 
Aguda North West is the only local provider able to provide this service with the 
breadth and depth of community links required. Reg 32 of the PCR permits direct 

awards of contracts in these circumstances:  (b)  where the works, supplies or services 
can be supplied only by a particular economic operator …. (because) competition is 

absent for technical reasons” if it could be seen that Aguda are a unique provider 
 
With regard to the premises used by the Children’s Centre, the lease between the 

Council and Aguda North West restricts the use of the premises to that of a Surestart 
Children’s Resource, and Aguda North West is committed to providing the Hershel 

Weiss Centre and its facilities throughout the lease period of 25 years from the 25th 
July 2008. The lease also provides that so long as Aguda North West does not 
contravene any term of the lease the Council will allow Aguda North West to possess 

and use the property. There is, therefore, a commitment to allow the current service 
provider to provide the service at the premises.                           

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Chris Mee, Strategic Finance Manager, 

tel. 0161 778 0434 

The annual cost of this existing contract of £94,595 is built into the approved 
Children’s Services Revenue Budget and currently sits within the existing Integrated 

Fund arrangements. The council obligation to maintain the building at an estimated 
cost of £10k per year is budgeted for separately and is not part of the contract 
payment made to Aguda. 

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Christine Flisk, Procurement 

Manager, tel.  0161 686 6245 

The value of the contract fall under the light touch regime (LTR), the threshold for 
LTR is £663,540.  It has been identified that these services cannot be provided by 

another contractor in line with PCR regulation 32,  where Reg 32 of the PCR permits 
direct awards of contracts in these circumstances:  (b)  where the works, supplies or 

services can be supplied only by a particular economic operator …. (because) 

Page 22



9 
 

competition is absent for technical reasons” if it could be seen that Aguda North 
West are a unique provider with the expertise to undertake the services. In line with 

the council’s contractual standing orders Procurement Board can approve an 
exception to standing orders for the reasons outlined within the above report. There 

is always a risk of challenge from aggrieved suppliers that believe that they could 
deliver the service but risk is considered to be low.  

 

HR IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: not applicable. 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS:  Supplied by: Michael Hemmingway, Principal 

Officer, Climate Change, Tel  793 3209 

The Hershel Weiss Centre is located in the heart of the Orthodox Jewish Community 

and this reduces the need for children and families from that community to use public 
transport or cars to get to the Centre, so contributing to reduced carbon emissions 

from transport. 

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: not applicable 

 

CONTACT OFFICER:  Steve Titley, Commissioning Manager, Children’s Services  

TELEPHONE NUMBER: 07977 495 118 

 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: Broughton and Kersal and Broughton 

Park.

 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Trinity Way / Springfield Lane junction improvement – aw ard of contract  

Part 1: Open to the public 

 
 

REPORT OF 

 
The Strategic Director for Place 

 

TO 
 

Procurement Board 
 

ON 

 
2 March 2022 

 

 
  

TITLE:   Approval to Award the Contract for Trinity Way / Springfield Lane junction 
improvement scheme 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

 
That Procurement Board approve the award of the Contract for Trinity Way / 

Springfield Lane junction improvement scheme to Eric Wright Civil Engineering Ltd 
subject to Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) approval of a full business 
case and the signing of a delivery agreement. 
 

 

Detail required Answers 

Title/Description of Contracted 
Service/Supply/Project 

Trinity Way / Springfield Lane junction 
improvement  

Name of Successful Contractor  Eric Wright Civil Engineering Ltd 

Supplier Registration Number 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 
02565379 

Type of organisation 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 
Private Limited Company 

Status of Organisation 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) SME 

Contract Value (£) £ 710,507.51 

Contract Duration  Approx. 4 months 

Contract Start Date  09/05/2022 

Contract End Date  26/08/2022 

Optional Extension Period 1 N/A 

Page 25

Agenda Item 5c



Trinity Way / Springfield Lane junction improvement – aw ard of contract  

Detail required Answers 
Optional Extension Period 2 N/A 

Who will approve each Extension 
Period? 

Choose an item. 

Contact Officer (Name & number) Nicola Smithies 

Lead Service Group 

 
Place 

How the contract was procured? 

(to be supplied by procurement) 
Mini Competition 

Framework Details (where applicable) 

(procurement body, framework 
reference & title, start/ end date 

Bolton Council Highways Framework Contract 
2019-2023 (Lot 3 – Works up to value of £2.5m) 

Funding Source Choose an item. 

Ethical Contractor (EC): Mayor’s 
Employment Charter 

  

  

EC: Committed to sign up to charter  

EC: Accredited Living Wage Employer  

 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the award of the above-mentioned 

contract. This report provides a progress update following the successful bid to the 
Mayors Challenge Fund (MCF) which secured programme entry status to develop the 

project and seeks further approval for the next steps of project delivery. The Trinity 
Way / Springfield Lane Crossing once completed will provide safer walking and cycling 
facilities at this junction which is along the very busy Trinity Way corridor. The scheme 

will remove the existing barrier for pedestrians and cyclist movement between 
neighbouring communities. 
 

 
 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
 

 Appendix A: Scheme General Arrangement Drawing 

 
 

KEY DECISION:  Yes  

 
DETAILS:  
 
1. Background 

 
1.1 The Trinity Way / Springfield Lane junction is located between the ward 

boundary of Irwell Riverside to the north and Ordsall to the south. The dual 

Page 26



Trinity Way / Springfield Lane junction improvement – aw ard of contract  

carriageway along Trinity Way forms part of the Manchester Salford Inner 
Relief Road (MSIRR). This heavily trafficked corridor used by 33,000 

vehicles each day creates a barrier which hinders the east-west movements 
for pedestrians and cyclists between neighbouring communities. 

 
1.2 As identified in the Bee Network planning, the severance issue has been 

exacerbated with the lack of signal-controlled pedestrian crossing facilities 

at the junction with Springfield Lane. The pedestrian facilities are in 
desperate need to serve the existing and growing cycling and walking 

demands as a result of developments on either side of the Inner Relief Road 
within this part of the city in order to enhance the connectivity and provide 
a safer walking and cycling route. 

 
1.3 At present, there are currently no pedestrian or cycling crossing push button 

facilities at the junction meaning a long detour or seeking for gap between 
the fast-moving traffic, this increases the likelihood of collision occurrence. 
  

1.4 The scheme seeks to provide a direct and safer route for pedestrians and 
cyclists accessing the City Centre through provision of new cycle facilities 

and crossing provision to better connect the neighbourhoods. The scheme 
will complement the environmental improvements near Irwell Riverside and 
Greengate regeneration areas, hence supports the wider regeneration of 

central Salford City Centre and provides an attractive gateway into the 
wider city centre. 

 
1.5 The scheme proposal has employed a CYCLOPS design technique, which 

is the creation of traffic signal-controlled junction that protects cyclists by 

providing an orbital cycle route that will separate cyclist from general traffic 
in space and time. 

 
1.6 Wider benefits of the junction improvement scheme once completed will: 

 

 Increase the number of people cycling and walking around Irwell 

Riverside and Greengate neighbourhoods including support for mode 

shift from private motor vehicle 

 Ensure walking and cycling improvements at Trinity Way / Springfield 

Lane junction are developed as part of an integrated city centre strategy 

and Bee Network that connects neighbourhoods and communities 

 Reduce the severance impact of Trinity Way that passes through Irwell 

Riverside and Greengate neighbourhoods 

 Improve first and last mile access to public transport by walking and 

cycling (particularly to Victoria and Salford Central Stations and 

Shudehill bus station) 

 Reduce car dependency for short trips within city centre Salford 

 Improve access to Manchester City Centre by cycling and walking 

Page 27



Trinity Way / Springfield Lane junction improvement – aw ard of contract  

 Support regeneration and economic growth in city centre Salford through 

the establishment of high-quality public realm and enabling the 

sustainable growth of the Regional Centre  

2. The Procurement Process 

2.1 Tenders were issued on 17 December 2021 and a return date was set for 
28 January 2022. The tender was open and available for all contractors on 

the framework. Three contractors, all of which were complaint submitted 
tenders by the close of the deadline date.     

2.2 The tender evaluation exercise was undertaken by officers from the 
Highway teams, all of whom have been involved in the development of the 
scheme. They were also supported by the Social Value team for 

assessment on the quality of the Social Value.  
 

2.3 The three compliant submissions have been evaluated to determine the 
most economically advantageous tender under the criteria of quality, price 
and social value set at 40%, 50% and 10% respectively.  

 
2.4 Following the evaluation of the tender submissions the successful 

contractor is Eric Wright Civil Engineering Ltd. Approval is therefore sought 
to award the Trinity Way / Springfield Lane Junction Improvement Scheme 
contract to Eric Wright Civil Engineering Ltd at a target cost of £710,507.51. 

The tender scores were as follows: 
 

Name of Bidder % quality 
score 

(Max 40%) 

% price 
score 

(Max 50%) 

% social 
value score 
(Max 10%) 

% overall 
score 
(100%) 

Eric Wright Civil 
Engineering Ltd 

28.00 50.00 9.00 87.00 

Provider B 30.00 43.70 4.04 77.74 

Provider C 22.00 48.51 5.01 75.51 

3. Social Value  

3.1 The Contractors ability to deliver Social Value outcomes was assessed as 

part of the framework process. The highest bidder demonstrated a 
satisfactory capacity to deliver Social Value outcomes based upon a 4-

month programme to deliver social economic benefit to Salford.   

3.2 In Social Value element of the bid, Eric Wright Civil Engineering Ltd stated 
that they have a strategy which encompasses People (economic 

development and education & skills), Planet (Climate emergency) and 
Place (a safer and healthier Salford) which align with Salford City Councils 

priority themes. Eric Wright Civil Engineering Ltd (EWCE) in their tender 

Page 28



Trinity Way / Springfield Lane junction improvement – aw ard of contract  

submissions made commitments against a range Salford TOM’s, some of 
the main themes include: 

 

 

a) Economic Development 

 

 Local Supply Chain - Eric Wrights have committed to utilising 

contractors within Salford to provide a number of work packages for 
delivery of this contract and will source goods from local merchants 

 

 EWCE have demonstrated a commitment to good employment 

standards having already signed up to Salford City Mayor’s 
employment charter and will look to become an accredited living 
wage contractor.  Working towards improving E&D training for staff 

within this project. 
 

 
b) Education and Skills 

 EWCE have committed to working with both primary and secondary 

schools providing resources to deliver a variety of activities including 
work placements, mock interviews, CV writing and career talks 

dedicating time to support young people into work.  

c) Climate Emergency 

 Eric Wright is working towards becoming net zero carbon by 2030 

and have policies in place to have a positive impact. company fleet 
are transferring over to EV & Hybrid vehicles. To encourage any 

subcontractors to move to EV fleet.  

 Reduction of emissions due to a number of different initiatives that 

will impact on this scheme. 

3.3 These commitments will be formally agreed at the contractor inception 
meeting and will be closely monitored as part of the contract management 

on a monthly basis. 

3.4 EWCE already pays the living wage and are willing to become an 

accredited Real Living Wage provider. 

4. Funding 

4.1 The scheme will be largely funded from MCF grant to the value of 

£937,431.00, subject to a successful business case to GMCA, and a 

Page 29



Trinity Way / Springfield Lane junction improvement – aw ard of contract  

proportion of an allocated £350,000 Section 106 local match funding 
secured by the City Council. 

4.2 Following consultations with the Lead Member and Ward councillors, on 
11th August 2020, the Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable 

Development approved the allocation of £350,000 of S106 local match 
contribution received from the development at Exchange Court (Ref: 337 – 
planning application 16/67809/FUL), towards the delivery of cycling and 

walking improvements at Trinity Way / Springfield Lane junction project.  

5. Recommendations 

5.1 That Procurement Board approves the appointment of Eric Wright Civil 
Engineering Ltd, subject to securing MCF grant and the signing of a delivery 
agreement from Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) via 

Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM). 

 

 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  
 

 Salford 2025, a Modern Global City 
 Transport in Salford 2025 

 
 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  

 
The improvements will be of benefit to all but particularly to pedestrians and cyclists. 

It is considered that there are no adverse impacts associated with this project.  

 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK:   

 
Low risk: 

o Developers can seek to legally challenge the city council to claim back Section 
106 monies if not used on a scheme that mitigates the impacts of that 
development and/or spent in line with the requirements of the Section 106 

agreement.  
 

o The contractors on the Bolton Council Highways Framework Contract 
2019/2023 have a successful track record of delivering schemes on behalf of 
the City Council. 

 
SOURCE OF FUNDING:  

The scheme will be funded from Mayors Cycling and Walking Challenge Fund (MCF) 
grant. The funds will also be supported through Section 106 match funding which 

Page 30



Trinity Way / Springfield Lane junction improvement – aw ard of contract  

has already been secured by the City Council. 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323 
Date: 15.02.2022 

Comments: When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or 
the execution of works, the Council must comply with the Public Contracts Regulations 
2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSOs), failing which a contract 

may be subject to legal challenge from an aggrieved provider. CSO’s stipulate that 
where a suitable framework exists, this must be used unless there is an auditable 

reason not to do so. 
 
The procurement of the principal contractor has been by way of a tender exercise in 

accordance with the process set out in the Bolton Council Highways Framework 
Contract – Lot 3 (NEC4 Option B), which itself was procured in accordance with the 

PCR using an OJEU process, and will therefore ensure that the risk of challenge to 
the award of any contract is minimal and that any challenge, should it materialise, is 
extremely unlikely to be successful.  

 
Submissions were evaluated on the most economically advantageous tender basis in 

line with procurement procedures resulting in the proposed award of the contract to 
Eric Wright Civil Engineering Ltd. The procurement procedures therefore appear 
robust and compliant with the requirements of the Council’s CSO’s and PCR. 

 
The report refers to some funding for the works coming from s106 funds. The 

expenditure must be in accordance with the terms of the relevant planning obligations. 
Should the Council allocate S106 funding outside of the conditions within the 
agreements, or outside the timescales, or in breach of applicable Regulations, a 

developer may challenge that decision and claim back contributions. 
 

Legal shall be happy to review the MCF grant funding agreement to ensure the 
Council’s interests are protected. The terms of any grant funding agreement will need 
to be adhered to in the event that there are clawback provisions for failure to comply. 

 

 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by Natalie Birchall, Finance Officer  
Date: 16.02.2022 

Comments:   
The report seeks Procurement board approval to award the Contract for delivery of 

Trinity Way / Springfield Lane junction improvement scheme to Eric Wright Civil 
Engineering Ltd, to the value of £710,507.51 
The scheme will be funded from MCF grant to the value of £937,431.00 and a 

proportion of Section 106 (Ref: 337 – planning application 16/67809/FUL), £350,000 
secured by the City Council. 

The scheme has been awarded programme entry status and is subject to Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) approval of a full business case and the 
signing of a delivery agreement.

 
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by Daniel Cunliffe, Procurement Officer  

Page 31



Trinity Way / Springfield Lane junction improvement – aw ard of contract  

Date: 17.02.2022 

Comments: Trinity Way / Springfield Lane junction improvement contract was 

tendered utilising a mini competition through the Bolton Highways framework Lot 3. 
The most advantageous bid was chosen, therefore the mini competition is compliant 

with the Procurement Contract Regulations and the Councils Contractual Standing 
Orders.

 
HR IMPLICATIONS: 
Not Applicable 

 
CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS:  Supplied by Mike Hemingway, Principal Officer 
Date: 25.11.2020 

Comments:  
This project is an appropriate use of funding on the basis that it provides crossings 

and infrastructure to enable safer movements of pedestrians and cyclists at the 
junction of Springfield Lane, Greengate and Trinity Way. As noted in the scheme’s 
benefits, the installation of this new crossing will increase the number of people cycling 

and walking, improve first and last mile access to public transport by walking and 
cycling by supporting modal shift from private motor vehicle, reduce car dependency 

for short trips within city centre Salford and improve air quality around the area. 

 
 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  

Environment 

 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Anene Chiegboka, Project Manager  

 

 

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S):  
Blackfriars & Trinity 

 

Page 32



2003

2001

2009

2010

2015

3003

3002

3001

T

R

I

N

I

T

Y

 

W

A

Y

 

(

A

6

0

4

2

)

S

P

R

I
N

G

F

I
E

L

D

 
L

A

N

E

S
P

R
I
N

G
F

I
E

L
D

 
L

A
N

E

URBAN SPLASH ACCESS

G

R

E

E

N

G

A

T

E

B

O

O

N

D

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

C

A

Y

G

I
L

L

 
S

T

R

E

E

T

C

O

L

L

I
E

R

 
S

T

R

E

E

T

SCHEME EXTENTS

EXTENTS OF ADDITIONAL BOUGHT LAND

EXISTING KERBLINE

PROPOSED HALF BATTERED 125MM UPSTAND KERB

PROPOSED DROPPED KERB AND TRANSITION KERB

PROPOSED QUADRANT KERB AT 305mm RADII

PROPOSED SQUARE TOP EDGE KERB

PROPOSED ROUND TOP EDGE KERB

PROPOSED FOOTWAY SURFACE

PROPOSED CARRIAGEWAY SURFACE

PROPOSED HIGH FRICTION CARRIAGEWAY SURFACE

PROPOSED CYCLIST CARRIAGEWAY SURFACE

REMAINING GREEN SPACE

PROPOSED UN-CONTROLLED CROSSING TACTILE

PROPOSED CONTROLLED CROSSING TACTILE

PROPOSED CYCLE LET UP

PROPOSED ROAD MARKINGS

PROPOSED GUARDRAIL

EXISTING GULLY

EXISTING GULLY TO BE REMOVED

PROPOSED GULLY

PROPOSED GULLY WITH CYCLE FRIENDLY GRATING

PROPOSED INSPECTION CHAMBER

EXISTING WASTE WATER MANHOLE

PROPOSED TRAFFIC SIGN LOCATION

PROPOSED TRAFFIC RETRO-REFLECTIVE BOLLARD

PROPOSED CYCLIST BOLLARD

KEY:

IB

RB

I/R DATE DESCRIPTION

ISSUE/REVISION

SHEET TITLE

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

SHEET 1 OF 1

SHEET NUMBER

60636042-ACM-TWSL-XX-DR-HW-0100-01

L
a

s
t
 
s
a

v
e

d
 
b

y
:
 
C

R
O

W
T

H
E

R
E

(
2

0
2

0
-
0

9
-
1

8
)
 
 
 
 
 
L

a
s
t
 
P

l
o

t
t
e

d
:
 
2

0
2

0
-
0

9
-
2

1

P
r
o

j
e

c
t
 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
 
I
n

i
t
i
a

l
s
:

D
e

s
i
g

n
e

r
:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
:

A
p

p
r
o

v
e

d
:

J
O

H
E

C
W

J

F
i
l
e

n
a

m
e

:
 
C

:
\
P

W
W

O
R

K
I
N

G
\
A

E
C

O
M

_
D

S
0

2
_

U
K

-
C

L
T

\
E

D
W

A
R

D
.
C

R
O

W
T

H
E

R
@

A
E

C
O

M
.
C

O
M

\
D

0
1

4
6

3
3

9
\
6

0
6

3
6

0
4

2
-
A

C
M

-
T

W
S

L
-
X

X
-
D

R
-
H

W
-
0

1
0

0
-
0

1
.
D

W
G

N

0

m

6.25 12.5

1:250 @A1

T
h

i
s
 
d

r
a

w
i
n

g
 
h

a
s
 
b

e
e

n
 
p

r
e

p
a

r
e

d
 
f
o

r
 
t
h

e
 
u

s
e

 
o

f
 
A

E
C

O
M

’
s
 
c
l
i
e

n
t
.
 
I
t
 
m

a
y
 
n

o
t
 
b

e
 
u

s
e

d
,
 
m

o
d

i
f
i
e

d
,
 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
e

d
 
o

r
 
r
e

l
i
e

d
 
u

p
o

n
 
b

y
 
t
h

i
r
d

 
p

a
r
t
i
e

s
,
 
e

x
c
e

p
t
 
a

s
 
a

g
r
e

e
d

 
b

y
 
A

E
C

O
M

 
o

r
 
a

s
 
r
e

q
u

i
r
e

d
 
b

y
 
l
a

w
.
 
A

E
C

O
M

 
a

c
c
e

p
t
s
 
n

o
 
r
e

s
p

o
n

s
i
b

i
l
i
t
y
,
 
a

n
d

 
d

e
n

i
e

s
 
a

n
y
 
l
i
a

b
i
l
i
t
y
 
w

h
a

t
s
o

e
v
e

r
,
 
t
o

 
a

n
y
 
p

a
r
t
y
 
t
h

a
t
 
u

s
e

s
 
o

r
 
r
e

l
i
e

s
 
o

n
 
t
h

i
s
 
d

r
a

w
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

o
u

t
 
A

E
C

O
M

’
s
 
e

x
p

r
e

s
s
 
w

r
i
t
t
e

n
 
c
o

n
s
e

n
t
.
 
D

o
 
n

o
t
 
s
c
a

l
e

 
t
h

i
s
 
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t
.
 
A

l
l
 
m

e
a

s
u

r
e

m
e

n
t
s
 
m

u
s
t
 
b

e
 
o

b
t
a

i
n

e
d

 
f
r
o

m
 
t
h

e
 
s
t
a

t
e

d
 
d

i
m

e
n

s
i
o

n
s
.

I
S

O
 
A

1
 
5

9
4

m
m

 
x
 
8

4
1

m
m

NOTES

CONSULTANT

AECOM

5th Floor

1 New York Street

Manchester, M1 4HD

United Kingdom

T +44 161 601 1700

F +44 161 601 1700

www.aecom.com

CLIENT

Salford City Council

Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road,

Swinton, Manchester, M27 5AW

tel. 0161 793 2500

www.salford.gov.uk

PROJECT

MCF Trinity Way &

Springfield Lane Crossing

Trinity Way & Springfield Lane, Manchester

1. THIS DRAWING IS ISSUED FOR THE

PURPOSE OF DETAILED DESIGN

PREPARATION ONLY.

2. THIS DRAWING IS PRODUCED FROM

TOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEY RECEIVED FROM

GEOMATIC SURVEYS ON 07/08/2020.

3. FOR DETAILED TOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEY

OF MCF TRINITY WAY & SPRINGFIELD LANE

CROSSING REFER TO DRAWINGS

2354-SHEET 1 & 2354-SHEET 2.

4. DIMENSIONS AND LEVELS ARE IN METRES

UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED.

5. DO NOT SCALE FROM THESE DRAWINGS.

USE PRINTED DIMENSIONS ONLY.

6. THIS DRAWING IS PRODUCED USING OS

MAPPING RECEIVED FROM SALFORD CITY

COUNCIL.

7. ANY DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN THE DESIGN

INFORMATION AND ON SITE CONDITION

SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF

THE ENGINEER BEFORE THE

COMMENCEMENT OF WORK

© CROWN COPYRIGHT AND DATABASE

RIGHTS 2020 OS 100019737 YOU ARE PERMITTED

TO USE THIS DATA SOLELY TO ENABLE YOU TO

RESPOND TO, OR INTERACT WITH, THE

ORGANISATION THAT PROVIDED YOU WITH THE

DATA. YOU ARE NOT PERMITTED TO COPY,

SUB-LICENCE, DISTRIBUTE OR SELL ANY OF

THIS DATA TO THIRD PARTIES IN ANY FORM.

DETAILED DESIGN

D0 01/08/2020 DRAFT

D0.1 05/08/2020 TRGM COMMENTS

D0.2 03/09/2020 COMMENTS INCORPORATEDUNCONTROLL
ED C

OPY

WORK IN
 PROGRESS

P
age 33

AutoCAD SHX Text
6a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
Evans Street

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
RB

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
RB

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
IB

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
IB

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
RB

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
RB

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
RB



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  

Part 1: Open to the public 

 
 

REPORT OF 

 
The Strategic Director for the Place Directorate 

 

TO 
 

Procurement Board 
 

ON 

 
2nd March 2022 

 

 
 

TITLE:  Request for approval to go out to competition through the Go Neutral 
Framework for contractors to design and build up to 14 battery storage systems as 

part of the Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme.  

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

That Procurement Board grant authority for the contractors, design and build up to 
14 battery storage systems as part of the Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme to 
be procured in accordance with the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules through the 

GMCA’s Go Neutral framework. 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

The purpose of this report is to request approval to go out to the Go Neutral 

Framework for the delivery of the above mentioned project. 

Salford City Council is seeking to install battery storage systems across up to 14 

sites to compliment the Solar PV install and maximise the benefit to Salford City 
Council in respect of reducing electricity costs. The proposed sites are as listed at 
Annex 1 and will be part of its contribution towards Greater Manchester’s target of 

becoming a carbon-neutral city region by 2038.  

Salix has agreed, with the GMCA, a change control to extend the delivery of the 

project from 30th Sept 21 to 30th June 2022 for those sites that need it. This will 
allow for battery storage systems to be installed and eligible for the grant funding 
which is estimated to be £1m for the 14 sites and 100% grant funded.   

 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  

 Five year environment plan for Greater Manchester 

 Property & Regen Briefing 25th October 2021 and 28th February 2022 
 

Page 35

Agenda Item 5d



  

KEY DECISION: No 

 
 
DETAILS:  

Background 

The GM 5 Year Environment Plan sets out five key environmental challenges that 
threaten the future health and prosperity of our City Region and the vision for 

Greater Manchester to be a clean, carbon neutral, climate resilient city region with a 
thriving natural environment and circular, zero-waste economy. Following the 

publication of the 5 Year Plan Salford CC declared a Climate Emergency, stating its 
commitment to the plan and to becoming carbon neutral by 2038. The plan sets out 
the urgent actions all of us need to take over the next five years. 

 
Salford City Council is seeking to install battery storage systems at 14 sites to 

increase the flexibility of local energy supply as part of its contribution towards 
Greater Manchester’s target of becoming a carbon-neutral city region by 2038. The 
GM 5 Year Environment Plan commits GM to increasing local renewable energy 

generation by at least 45 MW by 2024 and councils need to be at the forefront of this 
work.  

 
The addition of battery storage will allow for the opportunity to maximise the use of 
on-site generation at peak periods rather than exporting any excess energy 

generated to the grid, as well as the batteries being able to charge at the cheaper 
night tariff and for this stored energy being used on site and therefore reduce the 

reliance on grid supply at the higher day rate. 
 
Salix has agreed, with the GMCA, a change control to extend the delivery of the 

project from 30th Sept 21 to 30th June 2022 for those sites that need it. This will 
allow for battery storage systems to be installed and eligible for the grant funding 

which is estimated to be £1m for the 14 sites and 100% grant funded.   
 
Energy Storage System Sites 

Through the delivery of the project the GMCA has identified spare budget capacity 
that could fund further installations and as such asked partners to submit the sites 

they could deliver within the extended timeframe to 30th June 2022.  

The 14 sites identified for battery storage consist of those solar PV sites that have a 
day/night tariff for electricity and therefore provide the best opportunity to maximise 

additional energy cost savings by storage of any excess PV generation as well as 
allowing for load shifting by storage of electricity at the cheaper night rate and for this 

to be used during the day. Please see Annex 1. The sites vary in size and nature 
and have been reviewed by the GMCA alongside the eligibility criteria for the 
funding. The GMCA has confirmed that 100% could be provided by the grant. 

To date we are progressing well with the original installations at the 31 sites 
approved. The majority of the 21 PV sites are installed and awaiting commissioning 

and handover, with 5 fully commissioned. Given the scale of pace that delivery has 

Page 36



  

been achieved on the initial sites there is confidence that these additional sites can 
also be achieved by the funding deadline. 

Go Neutral framework 

It is proposed that the route to procure that is used is the Go Neutral Smart Energy 

framework that has been procured by the GMCA. This is a national Framework that 
is for use by GM authorities. The Framework has four lots and one specifically for the 
types of works that we are to commission for battery storage. Therefore, we propose 

to run a mini competition, as per the framework guidance, with the appointed 
framework contractors under Lots 1: 

Lot 1. Roof Mounted Solar PV & Battery Storage  

Social Value 

The framework has been evaluated with the following weightings, 40% Commercial 

and 60% Quality including 15% Social value. With works awarded through the Mini 
competitions, Salford will be able to tailor the Social Value questions specifically to 

the works we are awarding. 

 
 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  

 Five year environment plan for Greater Manchester 

 Great Eight Priority - Tackling the climate emergency 

 Climate Emergency Declaration 

 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: N/A

 
 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK:   

 
The programme has a risk register in place and mitigation measures. 
 

The main risk is around timescales to undertake the procurement, appointment and 
delivery of the scheme by June 22. This has been discussed with the Go Neutral 

framework and GMCA in relation to the PSDS 1 scheme. The timescales are 
challenging and a reduced programme may have to be delivered but it is thought 
there is capacity in the framework to deliver to these timescales.  

 

 
 
SOURCE OF FUNDING:   

100% grant funding - See financial comments below.  

 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Tony Hatton 

 

Page 37



  

When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or the 
execution of works the Council as a ‘contracting authority’ must comply with the Public 

Contracts Regulations 2015 (PCR) as well as the provisions of its own Contractual 
Standing Orders (CSO’s), Financial Regulations and the duties of Best and Social 

value. CSO’s stipulate that where a suitable framework exists, this must be used 
unless there is an auditable reason not to do so. 
 

The purpose of a framework agreement is to select through a procurement/ evaluation 
process a number of providers who can meet the service requirements of the Council, 

as and when those services are required. If they are required then the Council will 
undertake an exercise to call off the services from one or more of the providers who 
have been selected to be on the framework and this may be through any number of 

ways such as mini-competition, or direct allocation, depending on the circumstances. 
A contract will then be formed between the Council and the chosen provider/s. The 

Council will need to follow the procedure set out in the framework agreement to ensure 
the procurement process is compliant and bids are evaluated in accordance with 
published criteria.  

 
The proposed procurement of the works and services will be by way of a tender 

exercise using the Go Neutral framework, which was procured in accordance with the 
PCR to allow the Council, and other GM contracting authorities, through open 
competitive process, to access an arrangement whereby suppliers can be preselected 

to supply a defined scope of works or services under an agreed set of terms and 
conditions under various Lots. The terms and conditions established under the 

framework agreement govern the contracts let under the framework although each 
contract will inevitably have some differences to reflect the agreement struck between 
the parties to the contract. Compliance with the processes will ensure that the risk of 

challenge to the award of a contract is minimal and that any challenge, should it 
materialise, is extremely unlikely to be successful.  

Legal shall be happy to advise on the grant funding agreement between the Council 
and GMCA to ensure the Council’s interests are protected. The terms of any grant 
funding agreement will need to be adhered to in the event that there are clawback 

provisions for failure to comply. 
 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Gemma Singleton, Senior Accountant Tel: 
0161 793 2578 

 
GMCA has confirmed that the funding will provide 100% of the PSDS 1 project cost 

for the 14 proposed battery sites from grant (c£1m). 

 
 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:  Heather Stanton, Category 
Manager 

 
The use of the Go Neutral Smart Energy Framework is a national framework which 
has been identified as a compliant route to market.  We intend to run a further 

competition under the framework with a 15% allocation to Social Value utilising the 
Salford TOMs in order to gain further value for money on this project. 

Page 38



  

 
 

 
 

HR IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: N/A 
 

 
 
CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Hayley Nixon 

 
Salford City Council is seeking to install battery storage systems at 14 sites to 
increase the flexibility of local energy supply as part of its contribution towards 

Greater Manchester’s target of becoming a carbon-neutral city region by 2038. The 
GM 5 Year Environment Plan commits GM to increasing local renewable energy 

generation by at least 45 MW by 2024 and councils need to be at the forefront of this 
work. 

 
 
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  

 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Majid Maqbool, Energy Manager 

Hayley Nixon, Commercial Project Manager 
 

TELEPHONE NUMBER:  

 
WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S):  

N/A

 
 
Annex 1 – Battery Storage System Proposed Sites 

 

Site Name Type 

Worsley Leisure Centre Battery 

Broughton Leisure Centre Battery 

Irlam & Cadishead Leisure Centre Battery 

Salford Sports Village Battery 

St George's Day Centre Battery 

Salford Opportunities Centre Battery 

Fit City Eccles Battery 

Whittle Street Children's Home Battery 

Ordsall Leisure Centre  Battery 

Granville (EPH Stanhurst) Battery 

Alder Brook Primary Battery 

The Learning Centre Buille Hill Battery 
Brierley House Day Care Centre Battery 

Children’s Home, 159 Station Road Battery 

Page 39



  

 

Page 40


	Agenda
	3 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 16th February 2022.
	5a Request for Approval - Exception to Contractual Standing Orders - Contract Award - Allied Health Professionals Therapy for Children and Young People - Karen Smith
	5b Request for Approval - Exception to Contractual Standing Orders - Contract Award - Delivery of Children's Centre Services at the Hershel Weiss Centre - Steve Titley
	5c Request for Approval - Contract Award - MCF Trinity Way/Springfield Lane Junction Improvement Scheme - Anene Chiegboka - Revised report attached.
	05(c) - Appendix A - General Arrangment drawing
	Sheets and Views
	0001



	5d Request for Approval to Go Out to Tender - Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme - Additional Battery Schemes - Hayley Nixon

